
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

 

 

Thursday 4 January 2024 

 

Tel: 01993 861000 

email: democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk  

 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee, which will be held 

in Committee Room 1, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB on Monday 

15 January 2024 at 2.00pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 
 

To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Rizvana Poole (Vice-Chair), Alaa Al-Yousuf, Lidia Arciszewska, 

Hugo Ashton, Andrew Beaney, Jeff Haine, David Jackson, Rosie Pearson, Dean 

Temple and Mark Walker. 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Executive, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk


 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

To receive any apologies for absence, and to advise of any temporary appointments. 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting. 

 

3.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting, held on Monday 11 December 2023. 

 

4.   Application for Development - 23/02890/FUL - 1 Upper Brook Hill, Woodstock. (Pages 

9 - 28) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

 

Recommendation: 
That the application be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 

Business Manager – Development Management. 

 

Pages  Application 

No. 

Address Planning 

Officer 

11-26 23/02890/FUL 1 Upper Brook Hill, 

Woodstock. 

 

James Nelson 

 

 

 

5.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers (Pages 29 - 40) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers. 

 

Recommendation: 
That the reports be noted. 

 

6.   Appeal Decisions (Pages 41 - 42) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of any appeal decisions. 

 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

 

(END) 

Page 2



 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of a meeting of the 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee. 

Held in Committee Room One, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB at 2.00pm on 

Monday 11 December 2023. 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Rizvana Poole (Vice-Chair), Andrew Beaney, Jeff Haine, 

Dean Temple, Rosie Pearson, Lidia Arciszewska, Elizabeth Poskitt and Hugo Ashton. 

Officers: Andrew Brown (Business Manager, Democratic Services), Max Thompson (Senior 

Democratic Services Officer), Sarah Hegerty (Planning Officer), James Nelson (Planning 

Officer), Kelly Murray (Principal Planner (Enforcement and Appeals)) and Abby Fettes 

(Development Manager). 

Other Councillors in attendance:  Nil. 

111 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

Apologies for Absence were received from Councillors Alaa Al-Yousuf, Mark Walker and 

David Jackson. 

Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt substituted for Councillor David Jackson. 

112 Declarations of Interest  

There were no Declarations of Interest made by Members of the Sub-Committee. 

113 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

Councillor Julian Cooper proposed from the Chair that the minutes of the previous meeting, 

held on Monday 13 November 2023, be agreed by the Sub-Committee as a true and accurate 

record. 

This was seconded by Councillor Dean Temple and was put to a vote. 

There were 6 votes in favour, 0 votes against, and 2 abstentions. The vote was carried. 

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Agree the minutes of the previous meeting, held on Monday 13 November 2023, as a 

true and accurate record. 

114 Applications for Development  

Ahead of the Applications for Development being considered by the Sub-Committee, the 

Chair advised that there would be a meeting of Development Control taking place on Monday 

5 February 2024 at 10.00am. Members were asked to note this in their diaries. The Chair also 

advised that further information regarding the meeting would be cascaded by Democratic 

Services when available. 

The Chair also advised the Sub-Committee that applications 23/02619/HHD and 

23/02620/LBC (19 Park Lane, Woodstock), would be presented, debated and considered 

together by the Sub-Committee, and voted on as separate applications. 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/December2023 

 

 

 

22/01147/FUL – Land North of Green End, Chadlington, Oxfordshire. 

James Nelson, Planning Officer, introduced the application, for a proposed Single Dwelling 

(Para 80e house), detached gatehouse, garage, office and pumphouse building, landscape 

enhancements, SuDs/ephemeral ponds, landscaped mounds and associated works (Amended 

Plans). 

Phil Dobson addressed the Sub-Committee as the applicant, which raised points of clarification 

surrounding structural designs in-keeping with the local area and pre-application discussions 

regarding sustainability. 

The Planning Officer advised the Sub-Committee of an amendment to Condition 8, whereby 

following discussions between officers and the applicant, references to off-site biodiversity net 

gain would be removed, as it would be covered in a Section 106 agreement. 

The Planning Officer continued with their presentation, which clarified the following points: 

 Local Plan Policies OS2 and H2, and Para 80e of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) – The proposed site and dwelling would need to meet specific 

criteria contained within the policies surrounding ‘outstanding design’, and stated that 

the dwelling would need to be in keeping with set standards of buildings in isolated 

settings; 

 Structural Designs of the Application – The proposed dwelling would re-use materials 

from the existing site, and had been overseen by the Council’s Conservation and 

Design Architect; 

 Stages of Design Review – The application had gone through four stages of design 

amendments with officers, ensuring that area characteristics and features of the 

proposed dwelling meet aforementioned policies; 

 Biodiversity Enhancements – The proposed Section 106 agreement would fall outside 

of the application site, which would, in turn, help with the biodiversity net gain within 

the local area. The Development Manager stated that Members would receive further 

training on Biodiversity in early 2024 owing to new legislation that would be 

introduced. 

 Wider Landscape Settings – Paragraph 80e states that the design would be required to 

be in keeping with the local area. The proposals were deemed to be sufficient in 

restoring local area characteristics, whilst also providing mitigation measures against 

artificial lighting. 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points: 

 Implications on local wildlife – It was deemed that the proposed dwelling would not be 

in keeping with Local Plan policy OS2 and would have impacts on wildlife within the 

area of the proposed site;  

 Proposed Dwelling Design and Design Review Panel – Concerns were raised that the 

plans were not in keeping of other sites and building within the immediate local area, 

and stated that whilst the designs would meet the criteria of Paragraph 80e of the 

NPPF, the building would be in isolation and would not enhance the immediate local 

setting; 

Page 4



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/December2023 

 

 

 Enhancements of proposed dwelling on the surrounding area – The designs were of 

excellent quality, were well though through and that the site would enhance the local 

area; 

 Comments received from OCC Highways – Three proposals had been received from 

OCC highways as part of the applications, which had raised concerns with individual 

members when considering the application in its own right; 

 Mitigation of artificial lighting – The designs contained plans to help mitigate against 

excess artificial lighting within the proposed dwelling site. 

 Remoteness of the site – Concerns were raised that the proposed dwelling would be 
isolated in an open setting, and that the dwelling would set a precedence for other 

future dwelling designs if it met requirements within Paragraph 80e of the NPPF. This 

was deemed to be an anomaly within the current setting. 

Councillor Jeff Haine proposed that the Sub-Committee approve the application, in line with 

officer recommendations, subject to a legal agreement being signed by the applicant. This was 

seconded by Councillor Lidia Arciszewska and was put to a vote. There were 4 votes in 

favour, 4 votes against and 1 abstention. Councillor Julian Cooper took a casting vote from the 

Chair, and voted against the proposition to approve the application. The vote fell.  

Councillor Julian Cooper stated that he would make and support a proposition for refusal, 

aligned with Local Plan Policies OS2, EH1 and H2. The Development Manager and Planning 

Officer advised the Sub-Committee that specific reasoning would need to be provided to 

support a refusal of the application. 

After receiving advice from officers regarding reasons for refusal of the application, Councillor 

Julian Cooper proposed from the Chair that the application be refused, for reasons associated 

with Local Plan Policies OS2, EH1 and H2. This was seconded by Councillor Dean Temple and 

was put to a vote. There were 5 votes in favour, 4 votes against and no abstentions. The vote 

was carried. 

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Refuse the application, in line with Local Policies OS2, EH1 and H2. 

REASONS:  

The proposal would be adversely urbanising and transformative in the landscape, failing to 

significantly enhance its immediate setting, or be sensitive to the defining characteristics of the 

local area in conflict with NPPF Para 80e and Local Plan Policies OS2 and EH1.  

The proposal would not represent residential development of exceptional quality or 

innovative design in conflict with Local Plan Policy H2. 

 

23/01569/FUL – Land and Building (E) 439518 (N) 226211, Enstone Airfield North Banbury 

Road, Enstone. 

James Nelson, Planning Officer, introduced the application, for the erection of a detached, 

single and two storey viewing/instruction facility, including associated offices for staff and flying 
school users, WC facilities and garage for fire and rescue vehicles (amended plans and 

description). 

Page 5



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/December2023 

 

 

The Planning Officer drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the additional representations 

report, which had been circulated prior to the meeting. 

Huw Mellor addressed the Sub-Committee as the applicant, which raised a point of 

clarification surrounding flying training and instruction offered from the proposed site. 

The Planning Officer continued with their presentation, which clarified the following points: 

 The business needs for the application – The proposals would provide additional 

enhancements to flight safety and flight training procedures for both students and 

instructors; 

 Materials used – The proposed building would exhibit a fairly utilitarian design akin to 

existing development in the locality, using materials in keeping with adjacent built form; 

 Enhancement of the Development – The proposals were deemed to be in keeping with 

the overall site and would not provide urbanisation to the area. 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points: 

 Process of the application – The process of the application was subject to questioning, 

which had not been answered by the applicant;  

 Land Ownership and Car Parking – A previous, separate planning application had been 

approved in 2021 relating to on-site car parking; 

Councillor Andrew Beaney proposed that the application be deferred, to seek legal advice 

regarding land ownership, access to pre-existing car parking arrangements and associated S106 

agreements. This was seconded by Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt, was put to a vote, and was 

agreed unanimously by the Sub-Committee.  

 The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Defer the application, to seek legal advice regarding land ownership, access to pre-

existing car parking arrangements and associated S106 agreements. 

 

23/02619/HHD and 23/02620/LBC – 19 Park Lane, Woodstock, Oxfordshire. 

Sarah Hegerty, Planning Officer, introduced the applications, for the erection of two storey 
and single storey rear extension, raised height of eastern boundary wall and construction of 

replacement garage together with associated landscaping works, and internal and external 

works, to include the erection of two storey and single storey rear extension with amended 

fenestration and changes to internal layout. Raise height of Eastern boundary wall and 

construction of replacement garage together with associated landscaping works. 

The Planning Officer drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the additional representations 

report, which had been circulated prior to the meeting. 

Robert Hathaway, Michael McKie, and Maria Letemendia addressed the Sub-Committee as the 

applicants, which raised points of clarification surrounding the stone wall designs and height of 

the stone walling. 

The Planning Officer continued with their presentation, which clarified the following points: 

 Heritage Enhancements and Amenity Impacts – The designs would re-introduce a 

traditional dual pitched roof over existing, uncharacteristic flat roofed elements; 

Page 6



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/December2023 

 

 

 Raising of wall height – The proposal would not have a damaging impact on the current 

design and the existing structure, and would be in keeping with current states; 

 Loss of lighting levels – The applications would not impact light levels on the 

development, and the site would not be affected by the proposed works; 

 Officers were of the belief that the works would provide enhancement to the site and 

the immediate area, in terms of street scene, and were deemed to be in keeping with 

the historic landscape of the town. 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the applications, which raised the 

following points: 

 Views raised by Woodstock Town Council – The local Town Council had lengthy 

discussions at a recent planning meeting regarding the site proposals, and that the 

applications had been referred to the Sub-Committee by the local ward Member, on 

advice from the Clerk of the Town Council;  

 Blocking of Daylight – The proposed works may have an effect of natural lighting levels 

of the existing site; 

 Height of the current wall – The wall was of substantial height in its current format, 
and that by raising the height of the wall, it would have impacts surrounding 

consistency of the brickwork. 

 Materials used to raise the height of the wall – The Planning Officer stated that 

heightening the wall may look at odds with the remainder of the wall initially once 

construction work had been completed, but over time and through natural weathering, 

would become more in keeping with the current structure. 

 Road Safety – Owing to work ongoing at nearby Woodstock House, the site would be 
impacted by increased levels of heavy goods vehicles and construction traffic. The 

cleanliness of the road was also referred to, which Members believed would have a 

harmful impact on the access roads. 

 Biodiversity Impacts – Biodiversity Officers had considered the applications and were 

content that wildlife associated with the dwelling, such as bats and birds, would be 

protected as part of the applications. 

Councillor Jeff Haine proposed that application 23/02619/HHD be approved, in line with 

officer recommendations. This was seconded by Councillor Rizvana Poole and was put to a 

vote. There were 7 votes in favour, 1 vote against, and 1 abstention. The vote was carried.  

Councillor Jeff Haine proposed that application 23/02619/HHD be approved, in line with 

officer recommendations. This was seconded by Councillor Rizvana Poole and was put to a 

vote. There were 7 votes in favour, 1 vote against, and 1 abstention. The vote was carried. 

 The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Approve the applications, in line with officer recommendations and the inclusion of a 

Bat Informative and Construction Management Condition. 

115 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions  

The report giving details of applications determined under delegated powers, and decisions 

taken to appeal, was received and explained by Planning Officers, and noted by the Sub-

Committee. 

Page 7



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

11/December2023 

 

 

 

The Planning Officers stated they would update Members on Delegated Decisions in Chipping 

Norton regarding numbers of dwellings associated with applications following the Sub-

Committee meeting. 

116 Progress on Enforcement Cases  

Kelly Murray, Principal Planner (Enforcement and Appeals), introduced the report, which 

provided an update on progress in respect of priority enforcement investigations. 

The Principal Planner gave the Sub-Committee an overview of the recent workload of the 

Enforcement and Appeals Team and numbers of priority cases and detailed the progress and 

nature of the outstanding enforcement investigations as listed on the report contained within 

the agenda reports pack. 

Members of the Sub-Committee raised various questions regarding the outstanding 

enforcement investigations as listed on the report contained within the agenda reports pack. 

The Principal Planner confirmed that requests would be met where local ward Members 

requested regular updates to progress on cases within their individual wards. 

The Sub-Committee noted the content of the report and thanked the enforcement team for 

their continuing work. 

 

The Meeting closed at 4.06pm. 

 

CHAIR 

Page 8



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 15th January 2024 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Business Manager. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Item Application Number Address Officer 

11-26 

 

23/02890/FUL 1 Upper Brook Hill Woodstock 

 

James Nelson 

 

Page 10



 

Application Number 23/02890/FUL 

Site Address 1 Upper Brook Hill 

Woodstock 

Oxfordshire 

OX20 1UA 

Date 3rd January 2024 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Woodstock Parish Council 

Grid Reference 444479 E       216912 N 

Committee Date 15th January 2024 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

Construction of a dwelling together with associated works 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



Applicant Details: 

Mr Dennis Allen 

1 Upper Brook Hill 

Woodstock 

Oxfordshire 

OX20 1UA 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

This appears to be pretty much what we saw at pre-app - except for 

the addition of a modest canopy to the lower level doors, and except 

that we now have a more subdued colour to the render. They appear 

to have addressed the guarding issue for the green roof by excluding 

general access to it, although I am not sure how that protects those 

maintaining it - maybe they will use safety harnesses, with anchor 

points - and perhaps they could confirm. 

 

Anyway, to reiterate my previous view, there is more volume here 

than in the approved single storey scheme, but the massing has been 

well handled, and in my view sits fairly happily on the site. The design 

work is also of a high standard, and the contemporary forms chime 

with those of the parent building above. 

 

In summary, there are no obvious objections from our point of view.  
 

WODC Drainage • The permeable paving for the parking area is proposed to be 

constructed up to the northern site boundary/top of the 

embankment - an impermeable barrier/construction i.e. 

concrete baffles, should be provided within the construction 

to contain the water within the site, prevent lateral 

movement of water through the embankment and ensure 

slope stability.   

 

Soakaways should be designed to accommodate a 1 in 30 year + 40% 

climate change event with a minimum 1m clearance from the base to 

the water table at all times. They should be sited at least 5m from any 

building and at least 2.5m from the site boundary. 

 

All surface water should be contained on site for all storm events up 

to and including 1 in 100 year + 40% cc without property flooding.   

 

An exceedance flow plan is required to indicate the route taken by 

any storm water in excess of 1 in 100 + 40%, based on finished 

ground levels and directed away from neighbouring properties.  

 

No objection subject to condition as set out in Section 6.  
 

OCC Highways The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact (in terms of highway safety and convenience) on the adjacent 

highway network. 

Page 12



 

Recommendation: 

 

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission, subject to the following 

condition 

 

• G28 parking as plan 

 

 

INFORMATIVE 

 

Please note If works are required to be carried out within the public 

highway, the applicant shall not commence such work before formal 

approval has been granted by Oxfordshire County Council by way of 

legal agreement between the applicant and Oxfordshire County 

Council see Dropped kerbs, Oxfordshire County Council.  
 

Env Health Contamination Thank you for consulting our team, I have looked at the application in 

relation to contaminated land.  

 

Review of the records we hold suggest that the proposed 

development site is located in the vicinity of a former gas works. 

Given that the proposed development involves cutting into the hill 

side. Please consider adding the following condition to any grant of 

permission.  

 

1. No development shall take place until a desk study has been 

produced to assess the nature and extent of any 

contamination, whether or not it originated on site, the 

report must include a risk assessment of potential source-

pathway-receptor linkages. If potential pollutant linkages are 

identified, a site investigation of the nature and extent of 

contamination must be carried out in accordance with a 

methodology which has previously been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 

results of the site investigation shall be made available to the 

local planning authority before any development begins. If any 

significant contamination is found during the site investigation, 

a Remediation Scheme specifying the measures to be taken to 

remediate the site to render it suitable for the development 

hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority before any 

development begins.  

 

2. The Remediation Scheme, as agreed in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority, shall be fully implemented in accordance 

with the approved timetable of works and before the 

development hereby permitted is first occupied. Any variation 

Page 13



to the scheme shall be agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority in advance of works being undertaken. On 

completion of the works the developer shall submit to the 

Local Planning Authority a Verification Report confirming that 

all works were completed in accordance with the agreed 

details. 

 

If, during the course of development, any contamination is found 

which has not been identified in the site investigation, additional 

measures for the remediation of this contamination shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 

remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional 

measures. 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of 

the amenity. 

Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and 

the NPPF. 

 

It is also noted that the proposed development site is located in an 

area where full radon protection is required.  

 

  
 

Parish Council There have been multiple applications on this site and the Town 

Council feels that the previous comments made by the Conservation 

Officer are still relevant. 

The Council believes that the proposal is not in keeping with the 

other properties in the area and that are other locations in 

Woodstock which would be more suitable for building a new 

dwelling. 

The Council is also concerned that the extensive works required to 

carry out the proposal may cause subsidence to neighbouring 

properties.  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1  Third party comments have been received from 12 parties, all of which oppose the 

development. The following matters are raised:  

 

• Disturbance during construction 

• Subsidence  

• Drainage/flooding concerns 

• Impact upon the character and appearance of the area/poor design 

• Scale/massing 

• Loss of open space/garden 

• Overbearing/overlooking 

• No housing need 

• Failure of address concerns of refused application 

• Precedent for future development 

 

Page 14



3.2  Personal comments with regard to the applicant's agent are not considered material in this 

assessment and should not be taken into account in a planning judgement. Further, issues of 

subsidence relate to Building Control and civil legal matters.   

 

3 APPLICANTS CASE 

 

3.1  The application has been furnished with a Design and Access Statement, the key points of which 

are summarised below. The full document is available to view on the Council's website.  

 

3.2  'This statement is to support a planning application for a new dwelling on land to the rear of 1 

Upper Brook Hill with a frontage on Brook Hill. 

 

3.3  In June 2017, full planning was granted for a two-bedroom, single storey, partly subterranean 

dwelling on this plot (17/00717/FUL). Pre-commencement planning conditions have all been 

discharged (20/01017/CND) and in 2019 a stopping up order was obtained from Oxfordshire 

County Council for control of the land abutting the highway (190429-SE3706). A dropped kerb 

application was submitted in May 2020 and the kerb access works and site clearance was carried 

out soon afterwards, thereby discharging the condition for the works to be commenced within 

three years. 

 

3.4  During the pre-construction phase, construction costs were rising and material supplies were 

under pressure. It transpired that in the current market, the approved scheme would not be 

financially viable and a more efficient, more sustainable use of the land was required. 

 

3.5  In December 2022 an alternative scheme was submitted as a full planning application 

(22/0345/FUL). In February 2023 the scheme was refused at officer level for two main reasons: 

The design was considered by officers not to be in keeping with the character of the street 

scene or the Conservation Area and had negative amenity impacts on the surrounding 

neighbours and future occupants of the property. 

 

3.6  This application is a result of the positive response recently received from the local planning 

authority for a smaller, alternative scheme (23/01344/PREAPP, Officer: James Nelson). The 

reduced scheme is described below. The 3d views in this section are the 3d views submitted 

with the pre-application enquiry.  

 

3.7  After significant consideration and review of the previous refusal, this smaller alternative was 

proposed which followed a completely different approach to the massing and design.  

 

3.8  It was accepted that a four-bedroom dwelling was beyond the limit of the site potential, mainly 

due to the terrain and the compromised private amenity space available. A two-bedroom 

dwelling however had proved unviable due to the disproportionate cost for excavation and 

retaining structures. Although the conservation and design officer stated that a new design 

should use the previous approval as a model, implying single storey and simpler forms, we 

believed that this proposal, with a reduced upper level, had found a balanced position 

somewhere between. The forms were also simpler and followed the pattern of existing 

development within the site.  

 

3.9  Given the engineering limits of the retaining structure, the footprint of the development is 

limited to that of the previously refused application. There are opportunities however to follow 

Page 15



the established aesthetic and geometry of the existing dwelling to provide more unity across the 

site. 

 

3.10  The massing of the existing dwelling is an assembly of simple, rectangular volumes each arranged 

on one of two rotated axes. This original concept for the host dwelling was to reflect the 

topography of the site and peninsular setting. 

 

3.11  Already it can be seen that the emphasis is taken away from the previously dominant first floor 

volume and that the site is more open. The proposed courtyard is also larger and less enclosed 

and there is the opportunity for further amenity space by way of a sheltered first-floor terrace. 

 

3.12  Terraces that overlook the street cannot be considered to have adverse impact on properties 

opposite, as the street is in the public realm. This is a well-established principle and is evidenced 

by the upper-level terraces at numbers 1,3 and 5 Upper Brook Hill, all with views of the 

frontages of the houses on the north side of Brook Hill.  

 

3.13  Equally as important, a first-floor terrace wants to be as private as possible in order for it 

provide maximum benefit for the occupants, screening is therefore of mutual benefit. 

 

3.14  The management of site levels and planting ensures a pleasant outlook from 1 Upper Brook Hill 

which replaces a steep slope with little or no usability. 

 

3.15  Two parking spaces are provided in front of the dwelling. The way the parking is arranged 

means that occupants/visitors will also be able to 'park in' the two onsite parking bays by parking 

alongside the kerb, thereby creating four parking spaces in total. The courtyard gates are wide 

enough to allow a car or van to enter in the event that a vehicle needs to be stored more 

securely should the occupants be away from the property for any period of time.  

 

3.16  Secure cycle and bin storage is provided in the courtyard. There is also sufficient storage for 

outdoor furniture, barbeques etc to ensure that the courtyard remains an uncluttered and 

pleasant outdoor environment. The total storage provided is approximately 10 sqm.  

 

3.17  The 53 sqm courtyard is of a size typical of a town centre town house and is located to be of 

maximum use as an extension to the main living space. The upper terrace is accessed from the 

hall and bedroom at first floor level. 

 

3.18  The Energy & Sustainability Statement prepared by ERS Consultants demonstrates that the 

proposal meets the high standards of energy use required to comply with current WODC 

planning policies.  

 

3.19  In this instance, with a very high-performance building fabric, assisted by being partially 

subterranean, a solution is proposed that requires a high-efficiency air source heat pump, but 

does not require photovoltaic panels. This is significant as the unique site topography is not 

ideally suited for the use of solar panels. 

 

3.20  The proposal has been carefully considered in terms of the unique site and wider setting. Issues 

raised from the previously refused application have been addressed and there will be no 

noticeable impact on adjoining properties. The dwelling will be detailed and constructed to a 

high standard and aims to enhance the conservation area.' 

 

Page 16



4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1 Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2 Locating development in the right places 

OS3 Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4 High quality design 

H1 Amount and distribution of housing 

H2 Delivery of new homes 

T2 Highway improvement schemes 

T4 Parking provision 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH8 Environmental protection 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH16 Non designated heritage assets 

EW10 Eynsham- Woodstock sub area 

West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background 

 

5.1  This application seeks consent for the construction of a dwelling together with associated works 

at 1 Upper Brook Hill, Woodstock.  

 

5.2  The application site comprises of a steep banked area, which lies to the rear of a large modern 

detached property (1 Upper Brook Hill), which was approved as a replacement dwelling under 

application ref. 12/1333/P/FP. 

 

5.3  The site lies within the Woodstock Conservation Area ('CA'). The site lies in close proximity to 

a run of three locally listed buildings forming a terrace (14-16 Brook Hill).  

 

Relevant Planning History  

 

17/00710/FUL- Construction of new dwelling with associated parking and landscaping. 

Approved.  

22/03455/FUL- Construction of new dwelling with associated parking and landscaping. Refused. 

 

Development Plan 

 

5.4  In October 2023 the Levelling-Up and Regeneration Act ("LURA") received royal ascent. The 

LURA replaces Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 in favour of 

new Section 38(5A) - (5C) which states:  

 

(5A)  For the purposes of any area in England, subsections (5B) and (5C) apply if, for the 

purposes of any determination to be made under the planning Acts, regard is to be had 

to—  

 

(a) the development plan, and  

Page 17



(b) any national development management policies.  

 

(5B)  Subject to subsections (5) and (5C), the determination must be made in accordance 

with the development plan and any national development management policies, unless 

material considerations strongly indicate otherwise.  

 

(5C)  If to any extent the development plan conflicts with a national development 

management policy, the conflict must be resolved in favour of the national development 

management policy. 

 

5.5  The amended legislation gives statutory weight to 'national development management policies' 

(which do not form part of the development plan) and states that material considerations must 

'strongly' outweigh the development plan and any national development management policies to 

warrant departure. Subsection 5C outlines that where the development plan conflicts with a 

national development management policy, national policy should take precedence.  

 

5.6  In this case, the development plan is comprised of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 ('the 

WOLP') and Woodstock Neighbourhood Plan ('WNP'). The WNP has a singular focus upon the 

protection of green and open spaces within the neighbourhood area. The proposed 

development would not affect a designated Local Green Space and as such, the WNP does not 

contain any policies relevant to this application.  

 

5.7  Section 38ZA clarifies the meaning of "national development management policy" as:  

 

(1)  A "national development management policy" is a policy (however expressed) of the 

Secretary of State in relation to the development or use of land in England, or any part 

of England, which the Secretary of State by direction designates as a national 

development management policy.  

 

5.8  At this time, no national development management policies have been adopted and as such, the 

application should be determined in accordance with the WOLP unless material considerations 

strongly indicate otherwise.  

 

National Policy/Guidance 

 

5.9  The National Planning Policy Framework ('NPPF') sets out the Government's planning policies 

and how these are expected to be applied. The NPPF advices that the purpose of the planning 

system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development and sets out that there 

are three dimensions to sustainable development: economic, social and environmental. In 

essence, the economic role should contribute to building a strong, responsive and competitive 

economy; the social role should support strong, vibrant and healthy communities; and the 

environmental role should contribute to protecting and enhancing the natural, built and historic 

environment. These roles should not be undertaken in isolation, because they are mutually 

dependant.  

 

5.10  At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development and paragraph 

11 advices that for decision-making this means approving development proposals that accord 

with an up-to-date development plan without delay 

 

 

Page 18



The Council's housing land supply position and the implications of the NPPF 

 

5.11  Policies H1 and H2 of the WOLP identify an overall housing requirement of 15,950 homes to be 

delivered in the period 2011 - 2031. Ordinarily, this would be used to calculate the Council's 

five-year housing land supply. However, the Council has undertaken a formal review of the 

WOLP in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 

(England) Regulations 2012 and in doing so has determined that the housing trajectory of 

Policies H1 and H2 are out of date and need to be reviewed. In accordance with national policy, 

because those policies are now more than 5 years' old, until such time as a new housing 

requirement is determined through the new Local Plan, the District Council will calculate its 

five-year housing land supply position on the basis of local housing need using the Government's 

standard method. For West Oxfordshire, the latest standard method calculation suggests a 

housing need figure of 570 homes per year. This is the basis upon which the requirement for the 

5-year period 2023 - 2028 has been calculated. Set against a 5-year requirement of 3,060 homes, 

the Council is currently able to demonstrate a 5.4-year supply and NPPF Paragraph 11d is 

therefore not engaged and the application should be determined in accordance with the 

development unless material considerations strongly indicate otherwise. 

 

5.12  Taking into account planning policy, history, other material considerations and the 

representations of interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations 

for the application are: 

 

• Principle; 

• Siting, Scale and Appearance; 

• Impact upon Heritage Assets; 

• Drainage/Flood Risk 

• Neighbourly Amenity;  

• Highways/Accessibility Impacts; and  

• Sustainability 

 

5.13  Each will be considered in the following sections of this report. 

 

Principle 

 

5.14  WOLP Policy OS2 sets out the general spatial strategy in the District and identifies a hierarchy 

of settlements for new development, which seeks to steer a significant proportion of future 

development to the 'main service centres' of Witney, Carterton and Chipping Norton. It takes a 

hierarchical approach as set out in table 4b, which characterises Woodstock as a 'rural service 

centre' suitable for:  

 

'a reasonable scale of development, whilst protecting its important historic character and the 

setting of Blenheim Palace, in order to deliver affordable housing, enhance local services and 

reinforce its role as a service centre'.  

 

5.15  OS2 goes on to state:  

 

'Proposals for residential development will be considered in accordance with Policy H2 of this 

Local Plan'. 

 

Page 19



5.16  WOLP Policy H2 states that new dwellings will be permitted at the main service centres, rural 

service centres and villages on undeveloped land within the built up area, provided that the 

proposal is in accordance with the other policies in the plan and in particular the general 

principles in Policy OS2. These principles include that development should not involve the loss 

of open space or other features that make an important contribution to the character or 

appearance of the area; and further, that development should conserve and enhance the natural, 

historic and built environment. 

 

5.17  Subject to the application demonstrating compliance with these general principles, officers 

consider that the principle of residential development on this site is acceptable. 

 

Siting, Scale and Appearance 

 

5.18  WOLP Policy OS4 states 'high design quality is central to the strategy for West Oxfordshire. 

New development should respect the historic, architectural and landscape character of the 

locality, contribute to local distinctiveness and, where possible, enhance the character and 

quality of the surroundings’.  

 

5.19  Section 11 of the NPPF relates to effective use of land and states that planning decisions should 

support development that makes efficient use of land. Section 12 reinforces the fundamental 

nature of good design to sustainable development and states that 'good design is a key aspect of 

sustainable development' (Para. 126). Paragraph 130 is clear that development proposals should 

function well and add to the overall quality of the area; are visually attractive as a result of good 

architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping; are sympathetic to local character 

and history and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and have a high standard of 

amenity for existing and future users.  Paragraph 134 outlines that 'development that is not well 

designed should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies'.  

 

5.20  The proposed dwelling would be cut into the steeply sloping site, which whilst associated with 1 

Upper Brook Hill, is practically unusable as amenity space. The built form would be 

concentrated in the eastern part of the plot and set over two-stories comprised of two 

rectangular blocks, slightly off-set to align with the rear of the plot, with a small cantilever to the 

front elevation and roof terrace. The dwelling would be finished in stone and render with a 

sedum roof and triple glazed windows. A courtyard and parking area would also be provided 

within the site.  

 

5.21  The proposed design displays an unashamedly contemporary design using forms that chime with 

1 Upper Brook Hill. A significant portion of the massing of the building would be recessed into 

the hillside. Further, the perception of massing is reduced through the scale of the upper floor, 

which occupies a smaller footprint than the ground floor. Therefore, in terms of scale and 

massing, whilst the proposed would be taller than the approved structure on this site, the design 

and forms are considered cleaner and would not read as bulky nor overdevelopment of the site. 

The proposal would also retain a sense of openness in the western half of the plot, and would 

differentiate itself from 1 Upper Brook Hill through its massing and use of materials. In addition, 

the proposed terraces, refuse storage space and parking areas have been thoroughly integrated 

into the design, with screening used to secure privacy. As a result, the proposed design is 

considered to represent efficient use of land and demonstrate high quality design in response to 

this unusual site context.  

 

 

Page 20



Impact upon Heritage Assets  

 

5.22  Within a conservation area, officers are required to take account of section 72(1) of the 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended, which states that, with 

respect to buildings or other land in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the 

desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  

 

5.23  Section 16 of the NPPF states that in determining applications, local planning authorities should 

take account of the desirability of sustaining or enhancing the significance of heritage assets. 

Paragraph 194 requires the applicant to describe the significance of affected heritage assets. 

Paragraph 199 states that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the 

significance of a designated heritage asset, such as a conservation area, great weight should be 

given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight 

should be). Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its 

alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear and 

convincing justification (paragraph 200). Paragraph 202 states that where a development 

proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, 

this harm should harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal. WOLP 

Policies EH9, EH10 and EH16 are directly relevant to the application with regard to the impact 

of the proposal upon the significance of the CA and non-designated heritage assets.  

 

Main elements contributing to the significance of the CA  

 

5.24  In order to assess the impact of the proposal upon the CA, it is first necessary to identify its 

heritage significance. 

 

5.25  Paragraph 9.5.2 Eynsham-Woodstock Sub-area Chapter of the WOLP states: 

 

'Woodstock is a historic town of national, if not international, renown. The old part of 

Woodstock is a well preserved example of a medieval town; a Conservation Area covers much 

of the central area and there are almost 200 listed buildings.' 

 

5.26  The CA encompasses what is largely the mediaeval market town of Woodstock as well as parts 

of 'Old Woodstock' along the A44. The mediaeval core of the town contributes primarily to its 

heritage significance as well as its relationship with Blenheim Palace and its associated park, 

which dominates the western edge of the town. The medieval street pattern of the town, 

developed by way of 'burgage plots', is still evident. The market square at the centre of the town 

is defined by the primary streets, High Street and Market Street, which conjoin to form Park 

Street proceeding to Blenheim Palace Gates. The architectural form of the town reflects this 

organic growth over the centuries, and a broad range of styles ranging from the Medieval to the 

present day are evident and comprise Georgian, Victorian to contemporary modern styles. 

 

Contribution of the site to the significance of the CA and setting of non-designated heritage assets  

 

5.27  The application site falls within a transitional region between the historic development along 

Oxford Street to the south and Brook Hill, the north side of which is comprised of modern 

dwellings. The existing site is largely read in the context of modern and contemporary dwellings 

to the north, south and east. The site itself contributes to some extent to a relatively spacious 

and low-density character however, largely reads as an underused and peripheral piece of land 

that does not form an area of open space that forms a significant contribution to the character 

Page 21



and appearance of the area. Therefore, officers do not consider that it makes a particular 

contribution to the heritage significance of the CA or the setting the locally listed terrace of 

dwelling to the west of the site.  

 

Impact of the scheme upon the significance of the CA and setting of non-designated heritage assets 

 

5.28  The proposed development would exhibit clean, modernist forms, which would be 

contextualised by nearby contemporary-style development, particularly at 1 and 5 Upper Brook 

Hill. Further, the proposal would minimise its perceived massing through utilising the sloping 

nature of the site and reducing the footprint of the upper story, pulling the massing away from 

the adjacent terrace to the west. The use of form and proposed materials would differentiate 

the dwelling from 1 Upper Brook Hill, thereby alleviating concerns raised during the previously 

refused application that the development would lead to the appearance of a 'knot' of built form. 

The scheme is therefore considered to enhance the character and appearance of the CA and 

would not result in any material harm to the setting of non-designated heritage assets. 

 

Drainage/Flood Risk 

 

5.29  WOLP Policy EH7 relates to flood risk and seeks to reduce flood risk to people and property 

where possible and manage any residual risk. In this case, the site lies within Flood Risk Zone 1, 

in an area at very low risk from fluvial flooding, and the Council's Drainage Officers have raised 

no objection to the application subject to the imposition of a pre-commencement surface water 

drainage condition. Officers also note that matters of flood risk were considered and found to 

be acceptable in the assessment of both previous applications quoted above at the site. Officers 

are therefore satisfied that the scheme will be required to demonstrate how surface water will 

be adequately managed prior to construction of the proposed dwelling should the application be 

approved.   

 

Neighbourly Amenity 

 

5.30  WOLP Policy OS2 states that new development should be compatible with adjoining uses and 

not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. The importance of minimising 

adverse impacts upon the amenity of future and neighbouring occupiers is reiterated in Policy 

OS4, the NPPF and the West Oxfordshire Design Guide.  

 

5.31  Officers consider that the proposal would provide adequate levels of amenity for future 

occupiers.  

 

5.32  In terms of impact on neighbouring amenity, the proposed dwelling is approximately 20m from 

the front elevation of the adjacent properties on northern side of Brook Hill. Whilst the scheme 

would lead to an increase in massing compared to the approved single storey scheme, given this 

separation distance, the context provided by the existing dwelling at 1 Upper Brook Hill and the 

fact only the public facing front elevation would be affected, officers consider that the proposal 

would not materially impact the amenity of neighbouring properties. Further, given the location 

and design of the proposed amenity spaces, officers consider that no material impacts in terms 

of overlooking, overbearing or loss of light would occur as a result of the scheme.  

 

5.33  In terms of disturbance during construction, officers acknowledge the proximity of the site to 

residential dwellings and the large amount of excavation works that would be required to 

construct the dwelling. As such, officers consider that in order to mitigate disturbance during 

Page 22



construction, a condition requiring a Construction Traffic Management Plan should be imposed, 

requiring necessary arrangements to be made prior to the commencement of development. The 

application is therefore considered acceptable in neighbourliness terms.  

  

Highways/Accessibility Impacts 

 

5.34  WOLP Policy OS2 states that new development should be provided with safe vehicular access. 

WOLP Policy T2 states that all new development "will be required to demonstrate safe access 

and an acceptable degree of impact on the local highway network". The general principles of 

Policy OS2 and Policy OS3 seek to promote development which minimises the need to travel 

and lies in close proximity to public transport networks.  

 

5.35  The application site is located in an inherently sustainable location, reducing reliance on private 

car transport whilst providing parking spaces to alleviate concerns relating to on-street parking. 

Therefore, the highways authority have confirmed non objection the scheme subject to the 

parking arrangement proposed being secured via condition. As such, the application is 

considered acceptable in highways/accessibility terms.  

 

Sustainability 

 

5.36  WOLP Policy OS3 states: 

 

'All development proposals will be required to show consideration of the efficient and prudent 

use and management of natural resources'.  

 

5.37  As described above, the location of the proposed dwelling ensures that it would be served by a 

good range of public transport and active travel options. In addition, the proposed dwelling 

would be served by electric vehicle charging facilities, triple glazing and ample space for 

recycling/refuse storage off-street. Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposal complies 

with the requirements of Policy OS3.  

 

Other Matters 

 

5.38  The application site is comprised of amenity grassland of very limited ecological value and as 

such, no material harm in this respect is identified.  

 

Recommendation 

 

5.39  In light of this assessment, the proposal is considered to accord with West Oxfordshire Local 

Plan 2031 Policies OS1, OS2, OS3, OS4, H1, H2, T2, T4, EH7, EH8, EH9, EH10, EH16 and 

EW10, the Woodstock Neighbourhood Plan, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 and the 

NPPF 2023. The application is therefore recommended for conditional approval subject to the 

conditions as set out in the following section of this report. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

Page 23



REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. No development shall take place until a Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) has been 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development hereby approved shall be 

implemented and operated in accordance with the approved CTMP unless otherwise agreed in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the residential amenities of neighbouring 

occupiers. 

  

4. That, prior to the commencement of development, a full surface water drainage scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include 

details of the size, position and construction of the drainage scheme. The development shall be 

carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the 

development hereby approved.  

 

REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure flooding 

is not exacerbated in the locality (National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice 

Guidance). If the scope of surface water drainage is not agreed before works commence, it 

could affect either the approved layout or completed works. 

 

5. No development shall take place until a desk study has been produced to assess the nature and 

extent of any contamination, whether or not it originated on site, the report must include a risk 

assessment of potential source-pathway-receptor linkages. If potential pollutant linkages are 

identified, a site investigation of the nature and extent of contamination must be carried out in 

accordance with a methodology which has previously been submitted to and approved in writing 

by the local planning authority. The results of the site investigation shall be made available to the 

local planning authority before any development begins. If any significant contamination is found 

during the site investigation, a Remediation Scheme specifying the measures to be taken to 

remediate the site to render it suitable for the development hereby permitted shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any development 

begins.  

 

REASON: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of the amenity. 

 

6. The Remediation Scheme, as agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be fully 

implemented in accordance with the approved timetable of works and before the development 

hereby permitted is first occupied. Any variation to the scheme shall be agreed in writing with 

the Local Planning Authority in advance of works being undertaken. On completion of the 

works the developer shall submit to the Local Planning Authority a Verification Report 

confirming that all works were completed in accordance with the agreed details. If, during the 

course of development, any contamination is found which has not been identified in the site 

investigation, additional measures for the remediation of this contamination shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of the site shall 

incorporate the approved additional measures.  

Page 24



 

REASON: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of the amenity.  

 

7. Prior to the erection of external walls, a schedule of materials (including samples) to be used in 

the elevations of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in the approved materials. 

  

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 

 

8. Notwithstanding details contained in the application, detailed specifications and drawings of all 

external windows and doors to include elevations of each complete assembly at a minimum 1:20 

scale and sections of each component at a minimum 1:5 scale and including details of all 

materials, finishes and colours shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority before that architectural feature is commissioned/erected on site. The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the buildings reflects the established character 

of the area. 

 

9. Prior to first occupation of the dwelling hereby approved, a Rapid EV charging point(s) shall be 

installed in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority.  

 

REASON: In the interests of air quality and to reduce greenhouse gases. 

 

10. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the means to ensure a maximum water 

consumption of 110 litres use per person per day, in accordance with policy OS3, has been 

complied with for that dwelling and retained in perpetuity thereafter. 

 

REASON: To improve the sustainability of the dwellings in accordance with policy OS3 of the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

11. The car parking areas (including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces) shown on 

the approved plans shall be constructed before occupation of the development and thereafter 

retained and used for no other purpose. 

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road 

safety. 

 

12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with 

or without modification), no development permitted under Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, AA, B, 

C, D, E and G shall be carried out other than that expressly authorised by this permission. 

 

REASON: Control is needed to safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



INFORMATIVES :- 

 

1. Applicants are strongly encouraged to minimise energy demand, and take climate action, 

through fitting: 

 

• Electricity-fed heating systems and renewable energy, for example solar panels and heat 

• pumps; thus avoiding fossil fuel based systems, for example gas boilers 

• Wall, ceiling, roof, and floor insulation, and ventilation 

• High performing triple glazed windows and airtight frames 

• Energy and water efficient appliances and fittings 

• Water recycling measures 

• Sustainably and locally sourced materials 

 

For further guidance, please visit: 

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-

homes/ 

 

 

2. Please note If works are required to be carried out within the public highway, the applicant shall 

not commence such work before formal approval has been granted by Oxfordshire County 

Council by way of legal agreement between the applicant and Oxfordshire County Council 

 

Contact Officer: James Nelson 

Telephone Number: 01993 861712 

Date: 3rd January 2024 

Page 26

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-


 
 
 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS UPLANDS 

Period- 29th November 2023-3rd January 2024 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  23/01737/FUL Chipping Norton REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of garage building to create a single dwelling and garaging to serve 2 Churchill 

Road with associated works to include formation of a new access. 

2 Churchill Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Steve Goodway 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



DELGAT 
 

2.  23/01906/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

REF 

  

Erection of extensions to link Taillards Barn with The Grove together with associated works 

including provision of garaging with storage above. 

Taillards Barn Gagingwell Chipping Norton 

Mr Crawford And Ms Williams 

 

 

3.  23/01907/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

REF 

  

Internal and external works to include erection of extensions to link Taillards Barn with The 

Grove together with associated works including provision of garaging with storage above and 

changes to internal layout. 

Taillards Barn Gagingwell Chipping Norton 

Mr Crawford And Ms Williams 

 

 

4.  23/01930/FUL Chipping Norton REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Development of 5 no. age restricted single storey dwellings (use class C3), landscaping and 

ancillary infrastructure, with access from Churchill Road. 

Land South Of West End Farm Churchill Road Chipping Norton 

Mr Simon Tofts 

 

 

5.  23/02013/CND Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 4 (details of external windows and doors), 5 (full surface water 

drainage scheme) and 6 (landscaping scheme) of planning permission 21/02483/FUL 

117 Main Road Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr M Squires 

 

 

6.  23/02030/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Change of use from residential garden to car parking, comprising the provision of two 

connected areas of gravel for off-street parking with associated works including bicycle 

shelter. (Retrospective). 

Fowler House Church Street Kingham 

B Holdings 

 

 

Page 30



DELGAT 
 

7.  23/02204/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

External alterations to carry out repairs to the North and South roof slopes and the flat roof 

of the bay window on Northwest elevation (amended plans). 

Chadlington Manor House East End Chadlington 

Mr and Mrs Hartz 

 

 

8.  23/02376/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Removal of existing garage, shed and tennis court. Construction of a natural swimming pool 

and pool house. Erection of a carport, store and outside dining area along with a studio/store, 

and greenhouse. 

Kings Cottage Pudlicote Lane Chilson 

Mr Michael Anderson 

 

 

9.  23/02377/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

External alterations to include the erection of a victorian style greenhouse. 

Kings Cottage Pudlicote Lane Chilson 

Mr Michael Anderson 

 

 

10.  23/02381/CND Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 3 (schedule of materials) 6 (details of boundary treatment) 10 

(comprehensive landscape scheme) 11 (details of integrated bat roosting and nesting 

opportunities) and 12 (a full surface water drainage scheme) of Planning Permission 

23/00594/FUL 

Juniper Witney Road Finstock 

Mr Wai Kin Man 

 

 

11.  23/02398/CLP Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness to ascertain commencement of development and therefore, confirm 

planning permission 07/0943/P/RFP (erection of one dwelling) is extant. 

Prebendal Lodge Station Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr John Gittins 

 

 

12.  23/02403/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Change of use of land to residential garden. Closing of an existing vehicle access and creation 

of a new one, associated works. 

Squirrel Cottage The Green Kingham 

Charles Norris 

 

 

Page 31



DELGAT 
 

13.  23/02409/HHD Chipping Norton REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed flue, proposed part garage conversion and large rear bifold doors 

9 Ackerman Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Joseph Godden 

 

 

14.  23/02463/FUL Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Erection of extension to existing detached golf teaching studio and construction of a 

replacement driving range 

Wychwood Golf Club Lyneham Chipping Norton 

Snell Holdings 

 

 

15.  23/02480/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations comprising demolition works, extensions, new buildings and 

landscaping scheme (previously approved 22/00779/LBC) 

Wootton Place  Church Street Wootton 

Michaelis Boyd Associates 

 

 

16.  23/02481/HHD Chipping Norton REF 

  

Erection of a single storey rear extension 

35 Parkers Circus Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr J Kirk 

 

 

17.  23/02484/S73 Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations and extensions, new buildings and landscaping scheme (variation of condition 2 of 

Planning Permission 22/00767/HHD 

to allow minor changes to the approved scheme). 

Wootton Place  Church Street Wootton 

Michaelis Boyd Associates 

 

 

18.  23/02521/FUL Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Change of use and operational development associated with formation of a car parking area. 

(Retrospective). 

All Saints Church Shorthampton Chipping Norton 

The Lord Rotherwick 

 

 

Page 32



DELGAT 
 

19.  23/02541/FUL Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Alterations to main dwelling including construction of replacement porch, works to roof to 

include replacement and additional dormer windows. Re roofing of existing gardeners room. 

Erection of a greenhouse, a Summer house and an agricultural barn along with the 

refurbishment of the existing stables and garage. Refurbishment of existing lake with the 

installation of a Water Source Heat Pump and the addition of solar panels to the South side of 

the lake and associated works (Amended Plans). 

Chadlington Manor House East End Chadlington 

Mr and Mrs Hartz 

 

 

20.  23/02542/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Internal and external works to main dwelling to include construction of a replacement porch, 

works to windows and roof to include replacement of existing dormers and construction of 

three additional dormer windows. Refurbishment of existing stables and garage. Internal 

alterations to include changes to floor layouts with reinstatement of staircase from ground 

floor to basement and installation of a new energy system with associated works (Amended 

Plans). 

Chadlington Manor House East End Chadlington 

Mr and Mrs Hartz 

 

 

21.  23/02551/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Erection of single storey extensions 

Brambles Farm High Street Fifield 

Mr McWilliam 

 

 

22.  23/02561/S73 Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Variation of Condition 2 of planning permission 20/01937/FUL to allow changes to the roof 

and omission of basement accommodation. 

Park House Park Lane Long Hanborough 

Mr And Mrs McGovern 

 

 

23.  23/02575/HHD The Bartons REF 

  

Proposed drop kerb and associated infrastructure and hardstanding. 

Lower Turnpike Cottage Rayford Lane Bartongate 

Mr Jack Bryant 

 

 

24.  23/02588/LBC Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Works to rebuild an existing stone retaining wall. 

20 Market Place Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Lewis Silver 

 

 

Page 33



DELGAT 
 

25.  23/02594/HHD The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a single storey extension and construction of a front porch canopy along with 

alterations to basement to include extension and increase in floor level. 

Clearwell Cottage 34 North Street Middle Barton 

Mr Ginevra Gentili 

 

 

26.  23/02596/FUL The Bartons APP 

  

Construction of single storey storage building and associated works 

Old Meadow House Over Worton Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs D Ellis-Williams 

 

 

27.  23/02605/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Erection of single storey rear and two storey side extensions and front door relocation. 

10 Abelwood Road Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr Richard Herman 

 

 

28.  23/02625/ADV Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of two externally illuminated fascia signs, along with a wall mounted menu sign and 

a hanging sign (both non-illuminated) 

7 Middle Row Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Hasan Salik 

 

 

29.  23/02654/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Erection of a single storey rear extension and insertion of roof lights to side elevations 

8 Balliol Close Tackley Kidlington 

T Butterworth 

 

 

30.  23/02661/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of Condition 5 of permission 22/02262/FUL to allow change of material proposed 

for roofing from clay plain tiles in Old English dark red to natural blue slate 

73 Grove Road Bladon Woodstock 

Miss Susan Wills 

 

 

Page 34



DELGAT 
 

31.  23/02676/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of a gardeners bothy, entrance kiosk, installation of artwork and a boathouse kiosk 

with fenced enclosure (retrospective). 

Soho Farmhouse Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Soho House UK Limited 

 

 

32.  23/02684/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Amendments to previously approved wraparound extension to Electric Barn cinema (to alter 

the fenestration to rooms and add extension, pergola and covered way). 

Soho Farmhouse Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Soho House UK Limited 

 

 

33.  23/02699/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a first floor rear extension 

12 Grove Road Bladon Woodstock 

Mr And Mrs Klaus Hodge 

 

 

34.  23/02714/S73 Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of Planning Permission 17/01271/HHD to allow changes to 

fenestration as built (retrospective) 

Fairfax Stow Road Fifield 

Ms Jessica Hart 

 

 

35.  23/02729/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Construction of front porch. 

Candleford 4 Langston Villas Station Road 

Mr And Mrs C Baxter 

 

 

36.  23/02734/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing car port to garden room 

North Gardens Cottage Medcroft Road Tackley 

Mr & Mrs Bliss 

 

 

Page 35



DELGAT 
 

37.  23/02736/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Erection of rear single storey extension, replacement roof over garage, rear raised patio and 

screening, rebuild and enlargement of front entrance porch and bay window and proposed 

rendering 

18 Tilsley Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Sandra Alessi 

 

 

38.  23/02739/CLE Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

WDN 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (Use of property as dwelling house (Class C3) 

Chalford Paddocks  Oxford Road Old Chalford 

Mr James George 

 

 

39.  23/02745/FUL Milton Under Wychwood REF 

  

Erection of 8 no dwelling houses with associated works including access, provision of 

landscaping, public open space and new footpath links. 

Land (E) 426217 (N) 218672 Church Road Milton Under Wychwood 

Columbia Mills Developments Limited 

 

 

40.  23/02758/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

First floor rear extension 

26 High Street Milton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Mr Scott Powles 

 

 

41.  23/02756/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed replacement porch, pitched roof to ground floor side extension, replacement 

gutters to ground floor with SUDs to rear garden and replacement cladding to first floor 

Skansen 5 Woodlands Rise Stonesfield 

Mr And Mrs Sebastian And Philippa Larsson / Rumary 

 

 

42.  23/02821/FUL Woodstock and Bladon WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of former retail store building to create a ground floor bedsit and a first floor 2 

bed flat together with associated works to include an external stair, insertion of rooflights and 

modification to existing rooflights 

Store 16 Oxford Street Woodstock 

Mr C Baylis 

 

 

Page 36



DELGAT 
 

43.  23/02788/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Erection of single storey extensions together with conversion of existing garage to create 

additional living space and construction of new garaging. Works to include remodelling of 

existing dormers and construction of an additional dormer. 

75 Grove Road Bladon Woodstock 

Mr and Mrs Calvert 

 

 

44.  23/02790/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of an additional dormer to rear and insertion of a rooflight to existing kitchen 

Valmar Sheep Street Charlbury 

Mr E Parker 

 

 

45.  23/02791/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include the construction of additional dormer to rear roof 

slope, insertion of roof light to existing kitchen and changes to internal layout to include 

relocation of family bathroom to first floor 

Valmar Sheep Street Charlbury 

Mr E Parker 

 

 

46.  23/02855/OUT Burford REF 

  

Outline application with some matters reserved for the erection of four terraced cottages 

with associated parking and access way. 

Land East Of 4 Meadow End Fulbrook 

Woodgrove Land Ltd 

 

 

47.  23/02836/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single storey rear extension and construction of a detached home office building. 

Works to include conversion and extension to front of garage to create separate gym and 

storage areas along with construction of front entrance canopy (amended plans) 

18 Elm Crescent Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Miss Amy Marshall 

 

 

48.  23/02842/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Internal and external alterations to carry out repairs to garden room roof and installation of 

new rooflight. 

Chadlington Manor House East End Chadlington 

Mr And Mrs Hartz 

 

 

Page 37



DELGAT 
 

49.  23/02843/HHD Woodstock and Bladon REF 

  

Erection of fence (retrospective) 

22 Flemings Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Michael Trumper 

 

 

50.  23/02857/HHD Burford APP 

  

Erection of flat roof single storey rear extension 

8 Forest Grove Burford Oxfordshire 

Mr Jeremy Thair 

 

 

51.  23/02874/LBC Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal works including adjustments of non-original timber partition walls, reconfiguration 

and redecoration and amendments to electrics, heating and ventilation 

22A High Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Nicola Poole 

 

 

52.  23/02878/LBC Milton Under Wychwood WDN 

  

Internal alterations to the second floor and associated staircase to improve safety and 

bathroom provision on this floor. 

Red Brick House Bruern Chipping Norton 

Mrs Judy Astor 

 

 

53.  23/02904/CLP Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness (Conversion of existing two dwellings to create one single dwelling 

with a self contained unit along with alterations to replace two rear windows with doors) 

Cotshill Hospital Houses London Road Chipping Norton 

Advance Housing and Support Ltd 

 

 

54.  23/02910/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of single storey side extension to create a garage with store and annex ancillary to 

main dwelling 

The Beeches Great Rollright Chipping Norton 

Imogen Wyatt 

 

 

Page 38



DELGAT 
 

55.  23/02919/CND Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Discharge of Conditions 2 (schedule of materials), 3 (details of all external windows and 

doors), 13 (full surface water drainage scheme) and 14 (desk study and site walk over report) 

of Planning Permission 23/01543/S73 

High Fields Church Road Milton Under Wychwood 

C/O Agent 

 

 

56.  23/02922/CND Ascott and Shipton APP 

  

Discharge of Condition 7 (details of all external windows and doors) of Planning Permission 

23/01560/S73 

Land North East Of 51 High Street Ascott Under Wychwood 

Mr R Beak 

 

 

57.  23/02967/CLP Stonesfield and Tackley REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness (erection of an indoor swimming pool building in the rear garden) 

Woodland View Churchfields Stonesfield 

Ms S Johnson 

 

 

58.  23/02991/S73 Milton Under Wychwood REF 

  

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 21/00776/FUL to allow changes to the 

positioning of the approved dwellings including changes to fenestration, layout, parking 

facilities and the domestic curtilage of plot 1 with alterations to incorporate a conservation 

pond and associated landscaping works. 

Vicarage Field Church Road Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr Alex Cade 

 

 

59.  23/03012/CND Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of Condition 5 (full surface water drainage scheme) of Planning Permission 

23/02212/HHD 

Sunnyside Upper End Shipton Under Wychwood 

Bealby 

 

 

60.  23/03074/CND Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 6 (details of windows and doors) of Listed Building Consent 

20/03012/LBC 

Hitchmans Mews Albion Street Chipping Norton 

Mr Nick Grant 

 

 

Page 39



DELGAT 
 

61.  23/03092/CND Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 6 (Construction traffic management plan) and 7 (details of windows 

and doors) of Planning Permission 20/03011/FUL 

Hitchmans Mews Albion Street Chipping Norton 

Mr N Grant 

 

 

62.  23/03095/CND Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 4 (details of windows and doors) of Planning Permission 

23/02041/HHD 

36 New Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr D Holdsworth 

 

 

 

Page 40



Uplands Appeal Decisions 

APP/D3125/C/22/3304100, 3304101, 3304102 and 3304103  

Land at 1 High Street, Woodstock, Oxfordshire OX20 1TE 

• The breach of planning control as alleged in the notice is the unauthorised siting of two 

awnings on the front elevation of 1 High Street, Woodstock.  

• The requirements of the notice are to permanently remove the awnings and associated 

fittings from the front elevation of the building. 

The appeals are dismissed and the enforcement notice is upheld with corrections and variations  

 

You can click on the appeal number to view the Inspectors decision 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?Caseid=3304100&CoID=0


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Application for Development - 23/02890/FUL - 1 Upper Brook Hill, Woodstock.
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers
	6 Appeal Decisions

